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PROCEEDI NGS

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  On t he
record. Good afternoon, everybody. Wl cone.
' m Conmi ssioner Sinpson. |1'll be presiding
over today's proceedi ng, as Chairman CGol dner
Is unavailable. |'mjoined by Conm ssi oner
Chat t opadhyay.

We're here today i n Docket
DE 22-024 for a hearing regardi ng Liberty
Uilities (Ganite State Electric Corp.),

d/ b/a Liberty, for the 2022 Default Service
Proposal for the six-nonth period of

August 1st, 2022 to January 31lst, 2023,
pertaining to the | arge and snall custoner
gr oups.

On April 12th, 2022, Liberty filed
notification of issuance of a default service
request for proposals and a proposed
procedural schedule in this proceeding.

On May 13th, 2022, Liberty filed
testinony from w t nesses Heat her Tebbetts and
Adam Hal | presenting the Conpany's proposed
energy service reconciliation.

On June 13th, 2022, Liberty filed
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testi nony fromw tness John Warshaw to
descri be the process used by the Conpany to
procure energy service for the snall and

| arge groups, the proposed energy service
rates, and how t he Conpany proposes to neet
its 2022 renewabl e portfolio standard

obl i gati ons.

Let's take appearances, starting
wi th the Conpany.

MR SHEEHAN: Thank you. Good
afternoon. M ke Sheehan for Liberty
Uilities (Ganite State Electric Corp.).

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Thank
you.

New Hanpshire Departnent of Energy.

MR WESNER  Good afternoon,

Commi ssioners. David Wesner, representing
the Departnment of Energy. Wth ne is Steve
Eckberg, an analyst in the electric group of

t he Regul atory Support D vision of the
Departnent, and also Matt Young, who has
recently joined us as a hearings exam ner and
staff attorney.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: Do you
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intend to provide any witnesses to testify
today, or are they just avail able for
questions?

MR WESNER  They are working with
us on reviewi ng this docket. W had not
pl anned for themto take the stand and submt
t esti nony.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Thank
you.

Exhibits 1, 2 and 3 have been
prefiled and premarked for identification.
Is there anything el se we need to cover
regardi ng exhi bits?

MR. SHEEHAN: Not regarding
exhi bits, but | have one other issue to raise
before we get goi ng.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: Ckay.
Anything with respect to exhibits?

[ No verbal response]

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: G eat.
So any prelimnary nmatters?

MR SHEEHAN. Sure. There's a
topic that may cone up during today's hearing

that is confidential. And we've been talking
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to the stenographer and the parties, and
rather than trying to, A not say the
confidential words or, B, go through a
transcript line by line, we thought it best
to maybe bl ock out that portion of the

di scussi on so we can have three pages of
transcript that are confidential. | do note
there's one nenber of the public present.

| ve spoken to her and said she nay be asked
to walk out for a bit. Oherw se, everyone
else in the roomis either with the parties
or the Comm ssi on.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Ckay.
Thank you. So your --

MR. SHEEHAN. And that topic has to
do with the bidders that we received for the
solicitation and the quantity and quality of
t hose bi ds.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Ckay.
Commi ssi oner Chattopadhyay, did you have any
questions wth respect to confidenti al
material today? | did not.

COWM SSI ONER CHATTOPADHYAY: So

when you say "quantity,"” | guess -- if we are
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tal ki ng about, you know, kilowatt hours, that
shoul d be okay. And would it be okay to even
know how many bidders, things |ike that?
That's not --

MR, SHEEHAN. So t he nunber of
bi dders is always held confidential because
it's to our benefit to nake sure the market
under stands there are plenty of people
participating and they need to sharpen their
pencil. As we stated publicly in the
testi nony, we had fewer than normal in this
auction request. So if the Conm ssion's
going to dive into that, that would be the
topic that would be easier just to block off
t he whol e conversati on.

COWM SSI ONER CHATTOPADHYAY: I
think to be safe we shoul d, because |I' m goi ng
to ask about nunber of bidders and things
i ke that.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: Ckay.
I'd like just a nonent, please.

(Commi ssioners confer off the record.)

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: Ckay.

Thank you. Any other prelimnary matters?
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MR. SHEEHAN: None for ne. |'m
sorry. None for ne. But just to finish the
t hought, the source of confidentiality of
that topic is in the rules. 201(a)(15) [sic]
is the list of itens that are presuned
confidential in default service hearings.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: Ckay.

I think what 1'd like to do is I'd like to,
as we nove through and we get to Conm ssioner
questions, we'll ask questions with respect

to the non-confidential information. We' | |

take a brief recess, and then we'll return on
the record and we'l |l discuss confidenti al
information at that tine. | s that sufficient

for all the parties?
MR SHEEHAN: That's fi ne.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: G eat .
Thank you.
So then let's proceed wth the
W t nesses.
Ms. Robi das, woul d you pl ease swear
in the panel of w tnesses.
( WHEREUPON, HEATHER M TEBBETTS, JOHN
D. WARSHAW AND ADAM M HALL were duly
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[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]

10

sworn and cauti oned by the Court
Reporter.)

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Thank
you. |I'll recognize Attorney Sheehan for the
Conpany.

MR. SHEEHAN. Thank you.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR SHEEHAN:

Q

A
Q

W'l start by just introducing you fol ks and
adopti ng your testinony.

"1l start with you, M. Hall. Please
I ntroduce yourself and descri be your position
with the Conpany.
(Hall) My nane is AdamHall. M role is
anal yst, Rates and Regul atory Affairs.
M. Hall, did you participate in the
preparation of the reconciliation testinony
whi ch has been marked as Exhibit 1 and the
technical statenent which is a portion of
Exhi bit 2, beginning at Bates -- | didn't
wite that nunber down. W thout the page,
did you participate in those two docunments?
(Hal I') Yes.

And | know Ms. Tebbetts is prepared to point
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[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]
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out a couple corrections. Oher than those,
do you have any corrections to that testinony
in Exhibit 1 or the technical statenent which
is part of Exhibits 2 and 3?
(Hall) I do not.
And agai n, subject to what Ms. Tebbetts w ||
cover, do you now adopt your testinobny as
your sworn testinony this afternoon?
(Hall') Yes, | do.
Thank you. 1'Il cone back to you briefly.

M. Warshaw, sane questions. Please
I ntroduce yourself and your position with the
Conpany.
(Warshaw) My name is John Warshaw, and | am
manager of electric supply for Liberty
Uilities Service Corp. And | oversee the
procurement of power for energy services for
Granite State, as well as the renewabl e
energy certificates.
M. Warshaw, did you participate -- did you
draft the testinony and prepare the
attachnents that appear in Exhibit 2, which
is the confidential version, and Exhi bit 3,

t he redacted versi on?
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[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]

12

(Warshaw) Yes, | did.

And do you have any changes to your portions
of the testinobny or schedul es?

(Warshaw) Yes, | do.

And before you go, after you point out the
corrections for the Comm ssion's benefit,
we're going to turn to Ms. Tebbetts to
explain why we got there. So if you can just
descri be what needs to change, and then we'l|
go to the why with Ms. Tebbetts.

(Warshaw) If you turn to Bates Page 15,

Line 5, the value of 23.878 should be
replaced with a value of 23.879. And then if
you go to Line 8, the value of 22.227 should
be replaced with the value of 22.228.

Thank you. Wth that change, do you adopt
your testinony, witten testinony, as your
sworn testinony today?

(War shaw) Yes.

Thank you. Ms. Tebbetts, sane question.

Pl ease i ntroduce yourself.

(Tebbetts) My nane is Heat her Tebbetts, and I
am t he manager of Rates and Regul atory

Affairs.
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[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]

And Ms. Tebbetts, did you participate with
M. Hall in the preparation of the
reconciliation filing, Exhibit 1, and the
techni cal statenent which appears towards the
end of Exhibits 2 and 3?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

We under stand you do have changes to nake.
Can you explain what changes are in your
portion of the testinony and how we got

t her e?

(Tebbetts) Yes. So yesterday we had a
techni cal session wth the OCA and the
Departnent of Energy. And during that

t echni cal session we found a hard-coded
nunber in the filing. And due to that nunber
bei ng hard-coded, it did not feed into other
schedul es. And when we nmade that change, it
was very late in the day, and so we had --
Just let ne interrupt. To be clear, you nade
t he change before the filing canme in to the
Comm ssi on yesterday afternoon.

(Tebbetts) Yes, yes. M apologies. So the
filing was due on June 13th, and it was

pretty nmuch ready to go to be filed. And

13
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[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]

14

during our technical session late in the
afternoon we found this error. And so we
needed to make those changes on our end so we
could file this by 4:30 yesterday. And we
made the changes in our schedul es, HMI/ AVMH 1
t hrough 8, which includes all of the
reconciliation schedul es, the rate schedul es,
and the tariff pages. And unfortunately, we
m ssed maki ng those changes in our technical
statenent and in M. Warshaw s testinony, so
today we are naking that edit. And what that
edit is, is a change to the energy service
adj ust ment factor, which changed the overall
rates at the fifth deci nal point.

And for the record, please identify the
changes in your technical statenent.
(Tebbetts) Yes. |If you turn to Bates 116,
under the Small Custoner G oup Total Rate,
which is No. 2, the sentence reads, "The
energy service rate for the period of

August 1, 2022-January 31, 2023 for the snall
custoner group is .02227 [sic]." That should
be .22228.

And nmy next correction is on Bates 117.
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1 And when you | ook at the table for the Large
2 Custonmer Group, the line that says "ESAF,"
3 that rate for all nonths should read 0.00096.
4 So with that change, the total for the nonth
5 of August, it goes up to .18587; Septenber is
6 .16081; Cctober is .15134; Novenber, .19864,;
7 Decenber, .34354; and January, .41240. So
8 essentially all of those rates went up
9 $. 00001 per kilowatt hour.
10 Q And with that change you adopt your testinony
11 and technical statenment; is that correct?
12| A (Tebbetts) Yes.
13| Q And to be clear, the changes are just in the
14 docunents you and M. Warshaw referenced. As
15 you stated, the supporting schedul es and
16 proposed tariffs have the correct nunbers; is
17 t hat correct?
18| A (Tebbetts) Yes. And | do believe M. Warshaw
19 has an edit on Bates 105 as well.
20 Q Is that correct, M. Warshaw?
21 A (Warshaw) That is correct.
22| Q And what is that edit?
23| A (Warshaw) On Bates Page 105, in the area that
24 says the "Final Bid Prices at Retail Custoner
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[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]
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Meter, Including RPS," for the |large default
service bl ocks for August of 2022, the val ue
shoul d read 18.587; for Septenber 2022, the
val ue should read 16.081; for COctober 2022 it
shoul d read 15.134; for Novenber it should
read 19.864; for Decenber it should read
34.354; and for January 2023 it should read
41.240. And then the Wi ghted Average Price,
the first one in that colum should read

16. 708, and the second val ue should read

31. 928.

Now we'll go to the line for the New
Hampshire Snall DS. And for August, that
should read 17.595; for Septenber, 15.449;
for October, 14.535; for Novenber, 18.273;
for Decenber, 29.047; for January, 34.194.
And the Wei ghted Average Price should read
22.228 for that |ine.

And if | followed you correctly, M. Warshaw,
every nunber you read was .001 [sic] greater

t han what appears on that page.

(Warshaw) That is correct.

M. Hall, I"'mgoing to turn to you to ask for

where we can find actually the proposed rates

{DE 22-024} [HEARI NG - REDACTED] {06-14-2022}




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O © 0 ~N O O M W N B O

[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]

and bill inpacts. And ny first question is,
does what you're about to say include the
corrections that we've just discussed?
(Hal I') Yes.

Ckay. So let's start with the proposed
rates. Where can the Comm ssion find the
proposed rates?

(Hall) If you turn to Bates 119, on Line 17,
t hose are the proposed rates for the |arge
customer group. |If you turn to the next
page, Bates 120, on Line 21, that is the rate
that we're proposing for the small custoner
group. Also, if you turn to Bates Page 135,
on Lines 14 and 15, a residential custoner

t aki ng energy service fromLiberty using 650
kil owatt hours would see an increase in their
bill of $72.21, or an increase of

46. 67 percent.

And that increase is of the total bill, not
just the energy service conponent.

(Hall') That's correct.

And again, these are the -- these nunbers

i nclude the corrections that we've just

t al ked about .

17
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[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]
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(Hall) Correct.

Thank you.

Ms. Tebbetts, on Bates 115 -- make sure
| have the right page. |I'msorry. Bates
116, I'mlooking for the tine-of-use rates.

You knew that. Were are those?

(Tebbetts) They're under No. 2 on Bates 116
wi thin the paragraph.

Thank you. \Why are those tine-of-use rates

| ower than the proposed energy service rate?
(Tebbetts) So the tine-of-use rates for the
peri od of May through October are summer
rates. And so what we're seeing right nowis
rates for August 1 through Cctober 31st. And
that is relatively normal to see a rate that
is equal to or less than the winter rates
that we would see for tine-of-use. And the
reason for that is because we have not

I ncluded winter pricing in that cal cul ation.
On Novenber 1st, those rates wll change to
wor k through the winter pricing nodeling that
we have for tine-of-use.

And that was the nodeling that was initially

devel oped through the battery storage and now
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[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]
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filtered into the way we cal cul ate these
tinme-of-use rates for all customers who pay
ti me-of -use rates.

(Tebbetts) Yes. These rates are approved for
our battery storage pilot and al so our
residential electric vehicle charging rate.
Thank you.

And | ast, M. Warshaw, |'m going to ask
you the difficult question. Wy are the
rates so high at this tine? | suspect
everyone in the room has heard the story.

But for this docket, if you could explain
what you've seen in the nmarket that has
caused essentially a doubling of the energy
service rates.

(Warshaw) What we see in the market nowis a
significant and I woul d guess al nost
unprecedented rise in the cost of natural gas
and other fossil fuels. As aresult of this
significant rise in those prices, especially
when you're looking in the forwards to the
w nter, they're being reflected very high.
And as a result, because natural gas is the

margi nal fuel for electric generation in New

{DE 22-024} [HEARI NG - REDACTED] {06-14-2022}




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O © 0 ~N O O M W N B O

[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]

Engl and, the electric forwards reflect this
signi ficant i ncrease.
Ckay. Thank you. The other high-1Ievel
question that you have answered in testinony,
but 1"d I'ike you to say out loud, is the
pricing we have is a result of the RFP
process, as described in your testinony,
where you received bids from vari ous
suppl i ers.

Despite the unprecedent ed nature of
parts of this nmarket, are you still

reconmendi ng that the Conm ssion approve the

prices that we have included in this filing?
(Warshaw) Yes, | do recommend that we -- not
me -- you approve the pricing that is
proposed in our filing. The RFP went -- were

distributed to a nunber of parties, not just
parties that have inforned ne that they're
interested in bidding, to parties that have
bid in the past and al so to many nenbers of
NEPOOL.

Now, we received indicative bids, and
they were representative of the market. W

then received final bids. And again, because

20
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[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]
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of the distribution and the invol venent and
partici pation of suppliers, that al so
represents the market at that tine. And I
woul d recommend that we -- | keep saying
that. I'msorry. | recomend that you, the
Conm ssi oners, approve the proposed rates

t hat we have fil ed.

M. Warshaw, if the Conm ssion for sone
reason was inclined not to approve them is
there any -- can you nmake any statenent of
what would the price be if you tried again
bet ween now and August 17

(Warshaw) | woul d have no i dea what the price
would be if we had to re-bid this RFP so that
we woul d have pricing for our custoners for
August 1st.

Coul d be higher, could be lower. W just
don't know. Is that fair?

(Warshaw) We have no i dea what the market

w Il do and what the market response woul d be
if for sonme reason these rates are not
approved and the contract as a result is

voi ded and, you know, other suppliers | ooking

at that wonder how they would be willing to
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[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]
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participate in an RFP process.
And last, M. Warshaw, a different topic.

Last year at this hearing, a lot of tine
was spent on the Cass Il RECs. And just to
summari ze the i ssue, the Conpany purchased
Class IlIl RECs before the Comm ssion reduced
the obligation from8 percent to 2 percent,
and there was the di scussion over what to do
wth those extra RECs. In addition, we had
paid too nmuch for sonme of those RECs, and
t here was discussion of that as well. From
the order, it confirned that we did not and
wi Il not seek recovery of the too-high-price
portion of those RECs. But we put off for
anot her day what happens to those RECs that
we were unable to use because we bought
t hi nking 8 percent and then it canme down.

My question for you after that |ong
lead-in is we are not proposing that the
Conmm ssi on address that issue now, whether
there's -- whether we should recover for
t hose hi gher quantity of RECs. W have
deci ded as a conpany to push that off to next

year when nost of those RECs will have run
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[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]

t hrough the systemand we wll have a firm
handl e on how many unused RECs there w || be
and what the nature of the proposed recovery
would be. Did you follow all that?
(Warshaw) Yes, that is correct. But just to
clarify, we did use sone of the vintage 2020
RECs to neet our RPS obligation for cal endar
year 2021.

Thank you. But there's plenty nore in the
bank.

(Warshaw) Oh, yes, there are plenty, many
nmore RECs in the bank that we wll not be
abl e to use.

And again, we decided not to include that

now. We will include that next year when al
of the banked RECs that we can't use will be
determ ned, and we'll have our brackets
around that nunber. |Is that fair?

(Warshaw) That is correct.

MR, SHEEHAN: That's all | have.
Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Thank
you, Attorney Sheehan.

"Il recognize Attorney Wesner for
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t he Departnment of Energy.

MR. WESNER  Thank you,
Commi ssi oner Sinpson. | have sone clarifying
questions. A couple of ny questions were
answered by the witnesses just now. That's
hel pf ul .

CRGOSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR W ESNER:

Q

Just to clarify for the record, M. Wirshaw,
when t he Conpany conducts its energy
procurement process, it does so separately
for the small custoner group and its | arge
customer group; is that right?

(Warshaw) | wouldn't say separate. W just
offer up three different bl ocks for
suppliers to bid on. But it's not two
separate RFPs. There's one RFP that is
contai ned and requesting offers for both the
| arge custoner group and the snall custoner
gr oup.

So one RFP with three bl ocks: Two of them
for the | arge custoner's three-nonth peri ods,
if I understand it correctly, and for the

smal | customer group, a six-nonth period.
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(Warshaw) That is correct.

Ckay. Thank you. And if we | ook at

Exhibit 2, Bates Page 19 -- and | believe
this is an excerpt fromthe RFP itself -- so
here there's a listing of the custoner groups
and which rate classes are included in those
groups. I'Il just run through that quickly
with you.

In the small customer group there's
residential customers, and that's Rates D and
D-10, as well as small comrercial G 3,
outdoor rating Rate M And | think Rates T
and V are grandfathered residential rates; is
t hat correct?

(Tebbetts) Yes. T and V are electric heating
rates, therefore the commercial and
residential custoners. But they are

gr andf at her ed.

And the two tine-varying rates that you
mentioned earlier, Ms. Tebbetts, the EV rate
and battery pilot rate, would al so be
included in the small custoner group?
(Tebbetts) That's correct.

And the | arge custoner group are the | arger

25
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commerci al custonmers G 1 and G 27
(Tebbetts) Yes.
And G 2 has a load of 20 kilowatts to 200
kil owatts, and large is greater than 200
kilowatts; is that correct?
(Tebbetts) Yes.
Thank you.

Il want to talk a little about the
conpetitive solicitation process itself.
wi || endeavor to avoid confidenti al
information at this point, given the
agreenent that we'll address it in a separate
tinme period |later on when we get to
Conmm ssi on questioning. But | want to | ook
at Exhibit 2, Bates Page 91. And here
there's a summary of the nunber of final bids
that were received by the Conpany in this
solicitation process. And | think it's fair
to say that there was |imted participation
of final bidders for the | arge custoner
group. Is that a fair statenent?
(Warshaw) | woul d say yes.
And probably | ess participation than you' ve

seen in prior solicitations in prior periods?
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(War shaw) Yes.

Notw t hstanding that limted participation,
however, does the Conpany believe that the
results of the RFP for those | arge custoner
groups do accurately reflect conpetitive
mar ket dynam cs?

(War shaw) Yes.

And so the Conpany believes that the
conpetitive solicitation was successful and
the resulting prices are market-based. |Is
that also fair to say?

(War shaw) Yes.

And you addressed the Cass Ill REC issue, so
I wll not cover that.
| guess I'll turn nowto Ms. Tebbetts,

and this is nore in the nature of
clarification for the record.

If I look at Exhibit 1, the original
filing in this docket, at Bates Page 8,
there's a sutmmary of the differences between
the two reconciliation factors, the ESAF and
the ESCRAF. | wonder if you could describe
those in a little nore detail and the

di fferences between those two factors.
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(Tebbetts) Sure. So |let ne nove you to

Bat es 125.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Are we
on -- can you state the exhibit?
(Tebbetts) Ch, I'"'mso sorry. | apologize.
Exhi bit 2.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Thank
you.

(Tebbetts) Yes. So if we go to Exhibit 2 --

| guess it was in Exhibit 1 as well. But if
you | ook at Exhibit 2 on Bates Page 125, you
will see we have three conponents here. W
have the energy service over/under

collection, and that is the revenues

coll ected fromcustoners and the expenses
paid out to the suppliers every nonth for the
period. And then we have on Line 3 the RPS
coll ecti ons and expenses. And then on Line 2
we have the energy service adjustnent factor
over/under collection. And what the energy
service adjustnent factor does is it takes

t hese three conponents -- so the over/under
of the base energy service costs, the

over/under of the RPS, and the reconciliation
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of that over/under collection for the factor
fromthe previous period -- and waps it into
a rate to collect or refund -- in this case
collect all of the over/under for those three
conponents. So that is what the energy
servi ce adjustnent factor does.

So, effectively, this is the cumul ati ve
true-up between actual expenses and act ual
revenue collections. |Is that one way to
think of it?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

Thank you.

(Tebbetts) The energy service cost
re-classification adjustnent factor, if you
nove to Bates Page 127 in Exhibit 2, that
actually collects and reconciles our costs
associ ated with procuring power. And so the
kinds of things it works through are bad
debt, adm nistrative costs and our working
capital. So those conponents are separate
fromthe actual over/under costs associ at ed
with the revenues and costs of the power.
These are costs to do business to procure

that power. And that's what the "ESCRAF"
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stands for.

And those are all internal costs to the
Conmpany. Those are not third-party costs; is
t hat correct?

(Tebbetts) That's correct.

Ckay. Thank you. And | guess |I'Ill address
this question to Ms. Tebbetts as well.

In view of the dramatic increases we see
here in the energy service rates, is the
Conpany intending to inplenent any speci al
cust oner outreach and conmuni cati on
initiatives?

(Tebbetts) Yes. So the imediate information
we'll be providing is working with 211 and
our Conmmunity Action Program agencies so that
we can get the word out on the rate changes,
rate i ncrease. W are working through sone
bill messaging for the upcomng bills. W

al so are working through extended paynent
arrangenents. So for us, while the 1200

rul es provide a prescribed way of offering
paynent arrangenents, we have been through
COVID and intend to conti nue through this

period, and extend it if necessary, to be
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very flexible for our custoners. W also
intend to not have a prescription of the
paynent arrangements, where it's subjective
to every custoner. W don't want themto
fall behind. W want to work with them So
what they can afford, we wll work with., W
also intend to use a nmulti-faceted, enhanced
conmmuni cati on approach. And that's going to
hel p us assi st our custoners and stakehol ders
to understand the current situation and the
reasons behind the increase, what we're going
to do about it. And sonme of the things that
we will talk about is what | nentioned,
getting necessary funding fromdifferent
agencies if necessary to pay your bill.
There's al so the opportunity for energy
efficiency which we'll push. Then again,
we're | ooking to target our audi ences. So we
have residential and commerci al custoners.
The messaging for themis going to be
different. And then again, proactive
outreach to our elected officials and our

busi ness and i ndustry groups and nedi a

outlets so that everyone is aware and
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A

under st ands what the i ssues are here and how
Li berty is trying to work through to address
this with our custoners.

And will there be targeted conmuni cati ons
directed to | owincone custoners in
particul ar?

(Tebbetts) | believe that is part of our

nmul ti-faceted approach to this because
certainly they're going to be one of the

har dest - hit denobgraphi cs.

And of course, all custonmers have the | egal
right to choose a conpetitive supplier.
(Tebbetts) Absolutely. And | believe
actually one of the things we are going to
note in our information is the link to the
Public Utilities Conmm ssion where they can
find i nformati on about suppliers and also the
rates that | believe suppliers are putting on
the website. So they do have a choice. And
we wll be very clear wwith themthat there's
opportunity to find that information.

That's the shoppi ng conpari son website which
| believe is maintai ned by the DOE now?
(Tebbetts) Yes.
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Q

Thank you.
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: |

believe that's correct.

BY MR W ESNER

Q

Finally, is the Conpany prepared to work with
the DOE and OCA staff regarding that custoner
outreach and nessagi ng?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

Thank you.

MR WESNER | have no further
questions for this panel.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Thank
you, Attorney Wesner.

So now we wi Il nove to Conmm ssi oner
questions with respect to the publicly
avai l able information. And | wll ask
Comm ssi oner Chattopadhyay to go first, and
then | have a few questions. W'Il| then take
a brief recess for about 10 m nutes, where
we'll ask the folks fromthe public who are
here today to step out of the room And then
when we reconvene, we will cone back in
confi denti al session.

Ckay. Comm ssi oner Chattopadhyay.

33
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COWM SSI ONER CHATTOPADHYAY:  Thank

you.

| NTERROGATORI ES BY COWM SSI ONERS:

BY COWM SSI ONER CHAT TOPADHYAY:

Q

If 1'm asking anything that requires going
into confidential material, don't go there
and just let me know. But 1'll try ny best
to keep the questions as focused on public
i nformati on as possi bl e.

So the first thing | want to understand,
t here was di scussi on about banki ng of the REC
Il -- you know, the RECs, rather, the d ass
I1'l. You have indicated that that's not part
of this docket, but you may have to deal wth
it in 2023.

Wiat | would ask is, and this is purely
because | don't know or don't renenber, but
how does banking really work? How many years
can you keep on banking and -- you know, can
you give me sone sense?

(Warshaw) 1'll take that. The way banking
works in the regul ati ons, and regul ati ons
that we are required to follow, every year we

have an obligation to neet a certain anount
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of RPS RECs based on the varying retail rate
and the varying percentages of classes. Sone
change every year and sone renain fixed.

Now, in the past when we buy RECs, we
would et themretire at the end of each
trading quarter. At the end of the year,
when we do a full true-up, that we know what
our obligation is, what we've bought, if we
are short, we nake a paynent to the New
Hanpshire Treasury; if we are |long, we state
t hat we have X-nunber of RECs in our "bank."
| use quotes for "bank" because it's not
really physical at all. And then we're able
to use those banked RECs over the next two
years. The limtation that we have is that
you can only use banked RECs to neet
30 percent of your obligation in any one
year. So as a result, we are seeing that
there wll be a nunber of RECs that we did
purchase to neet the 2020 obligation, the
original 2020 obligation that then was
reduced. Additionally, we could have used
nmore of those RECs to neet the 2021

obligation for Class IIl, but again, that
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rate was reduced from8 percent to 1 percent.
VWhat we'l|l see is what quantity of RECs,
Class Il RECs, we will be able to use to
meet the 2022 year, which is the final year
t hat we could use banked RECs to neet an
obligation. And whatever we have |left over
that we were unable to use, our plans are to
recover that at a value of the ACP -- the ACP
at the time we purchased them not the actual
total cost.
So clarify this for ne: So you bought some
RECs for 2020. And let's say you' re banking
them So you can bank themuntil 20227
(Warshaw) That is correct.
And did you buy any RECs in 2021 that you can
bank until 20237
(Warshaw) No. W have attenpted to buy RECs,
but | never received an offer to sell
Class 11l RECs vintage 2021 for Liberty.
Ckay. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: Can |
ask a foll ow up about that?

COWM SSI ONER CHATTOPADHYAY:  Yeah,

absol ut el y.
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BY PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:

Q Can you speak to the nmarket prices of these
RECs at this time?

A. (Warshaw) Yes. The Cdass |11 REC market
price that |'ve seen in different
publications are relatively close to what the
ACP rate is.

Q And how does that conpare to the price that
t he Conpany paid in 20207

A. (Warshaw) Well, the Conpany is not |ooking to
recover the cost that we paid in 2020 that
was above the ACP. W would only be | ooking
to recover the cost of the quantity of those
RECs at the ACP val ue.

Q Thank you. Understood. Can you provi de even
an estimated figure for what the Conpany paid
per REC at that time versus the ACP price?

A (Warshaw) Subj ect to check, | believe we paid
sonmewhere around md $40 -- mid 40s for those
RECs when the ACP was runni ng at about 35.

At the tine that we bought those RECs, that
was the val ue that had been passed by the

Legi sl ature. They had an ACP val ue of $55,
which, as a result, buying RECs in the md
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40s | ooked like a really good deal. Subject
to -- after the Legislature passed that, we
did contract and we -- the governor vetoed

that legislation, and as a result the ACP
went down to the $35 or so value. And the
RECs that we purchased were above that val ue.
And froma noving-forward point wth respect
to nmeeting your RPS -- or the Conpany's RPS
obligations, in the future how woul d you
suggest approaching the risk of legislative
changes or uncertainty?
(Warshaw) That's a really difficult thing to
be in. W don't know what | egislation can
change. W don't know what retroactive
changes could be applied to the vari ous
percent age obligations. W basically work to
do the best that we can to neet those costs
at the | owest cost to our custoners. And if
I go back over the next -- |ast few years, we
have been able to neet the RPS obligation
| ower than if we had just said we'll just do
ACPs and wite checks to New Hanpshire.
Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Thank

{DE 22-024} [HEARI NG - REDACTED] {06-14-2022}




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O © 0 ~N O O M W N B O

[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]

you, Conmm ssi oner Chattopadhyay.
COW SSI ONER CHATTOPADHYAY: O

course. No problem

BY COWM SSI ONER CHAT TOPADHYAY:

Q

A

You had nentioned that the bids that you
recei ved were conpetitive. And you did talk
about how there was |less interest as far as,
you know, bidders are concerned this tine

ar ound.

How di d you determ ne that the bids that
you received were conpetitive? D d you do
any anal ysis at your end? O what nakes you
conclude that it's -- the prices that you
recei ved were conpetitive? So |'mreally
going to go there. You can give a general
description of what you think. But | have
one question about this.

D d you see anyt hi ng when you | ooked at
the indicative bids and conpare the final
bi ds, the indicative bids, that woul d suggest
t hat there was sonet hing, you know, worrisone
as far as the conpetitive nature of the
mar ket i s concerned?

(Warshaw) What | saw in | ooking at the bids

39
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and | ooking at the market, there was -- there
were changes fromthe date of indicative bids
to the date of final bids. And as a result,
| believe in speaking especially with bidders
who either elected not to participate at all
or elected to limt their participation,
there's a |l evel of uncertainty, a | evel of
concern about pricing, a risk that sone of
themwere unwilling to take. Some of them
were unwilling to put any nore risk in their
book of business than they already have.
There's a nunber of other utilities in New
Engl and that are basically | ooking for offers
and participating in solicitations to neet
t heir energy service, basic service, default
service supply. So, yes, |I felt that what we
recei ved was about the narket base price.
So let me think through this a little bit.
When you | ooked at the winning bid, did
you al so have a sense of -- and it's possible
you didn't, but |I'mjust curious -- what was
going on in other places at that tinme in
terms of, you know, what bids were being

accepted as wi nning bids? Maybe you don't

40

{DE 22-024} [HEARI NG - REDACTED] {06-14-2022}




© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

NN NN R R R R R R R R R R
A W N P O © 0 ~N O O M W N B O

[WITNESS PANEL: Tebbetts|Warshaw|Hall]

41

have the information, but just generally.
They don't have to be about bids. But when
you | ooked at the nunber, were you sort of
convinced that that is conparable to what's
goi ng on right now in other places?

(Warshaw) | would say that that is. Al of
the distribution conpani es keep the act ual
price that they pay at whol esale for these
types of service confidential. So that's not
really out there. At best, what | can see is
what the resulting retail rates are that do
get posted. And each of those conpani es
have -- you know, neet their default service
obligation differently, whether it's
Massachusetts or New Hanpshire.

But the trends that | saw, and in
speaking with, well, speaking with one or two
of the other conpanies is that the trend is,
"Wow, we never expected to see prices this
hi gh" is exactly what |'ve been getting.

What do you think will happen the next six
nont hs, not the one that you ended up
receiving bids for? But do you have a sense

of what the prices are going to be in the
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future?
(Warshaw) | have no sense what soever of what
the prices will be when we go out in Novenber

to receive prices in Decenber. Absolutely no
I dea.
Is there any forward pricing that hel ps? No?
Yes? Just | ooking at sone data. |'m not
sayi ng what you would receive. Just is there
information out there that you can | ook into
and give us a sense of what you think wll
happen in the future or what nmarkets are
signaling mght happen in the future?
(Warshaw) Well, if you turn to ny testinony,
which is Exhibit 2, Bates Page 8, you wl|
see that | have two graphs.
Bear with ne just a nonent. Bates page...
you said Exhibit 2?

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: One of
ny questions was to wal k us through these

graphs, so this is good tim ng.

BY COWM SSI ONER CHAT TOPADHYAY:

And you said eight?
(Warshaw) Bates Page 8, which is al so Page 6

of 14 of ny testinony.
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Q

Ckay. Conti nue.

(Warshaw) And those are the forward prices
that we -- that were settled at NYMEX futures
on the day that we had received indicative

prices, the day we received final prices, and

also -- yeah, final prices. And, oh,
didn't put in -- oh, those are prices when we
rel eased our RFP at the -- but that, what |

was trying to denonstrate there is to show
you what the forward prices were over the
| ast three years that the market was | ooking
at for the 12-nonth period begi nni ng
August 1st.

So right now, yes, pricing for the next
si x-nmont h period, which would begin
February 1st, it would be just -- it would be
simlar to what we're seeing now, other than
the market is | ooking at the sumer of next
year to be a bit |lower than the summer of
this year. What | can't tell you is what
this sane graph will ook |ike on Decenber --
m d- Decenber when we receive bids for the
next si x-nmonth peri od.

Under st ood.
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PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Yeah.
COW SSI ONER CHATTOPADHYAY:  You

wanted to follow up? You said you had sone

questi ons.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: You can
pr oceed.

COWM SSI ONER CHATTOPADHYAY:  Thank
you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: Wl |,
actually, if I may.

COWM SSI ONER CHATTOPADHYAY: Pl ease
do.

BY PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:

Q

So | ooking at these graphs, the yellow |ine
representing May 2nd of this year and the
lighter blue line representing June 7th of
this year, those trends are pretty aligned;
Is that fair to say?

(War shaw) Yes.

So about five, six weeks ago, the forwards
for NYMEX futures were generally in line with
the forwards froma week ago; is that fair to
say”?

(War shaw) About, yes.
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So on Line 2 of this page in your testinony,
you speak to participation in the RFP, and
you say, "Several bidders elected to not
participate in this RFP due to the current
volatility in the energy markets."

Can you provide sone context in terns of
a W ndow that those suppliers are |ooking at?
Because it |ooks as if the forwards are
pretty in line over the |last nonth or six
weeks. So what time horizon would you
bel i eve that those suppliers are | ooking at
when they nake deci sions about bundli ng
addi tional supply obligations into their
portfolios and the associ ated ri sk presented
by that deci sion?
(Warshaw) What | see and what | have heard is
that, well, yes, the forwards, you know, one
nont h | ooks very simlar. The |evel of
angst, the |level of uncertainty, the |evel of
just disconfort that a nunber of these
suppliers see -- and this wouldn't just be
bi ddi ng on our service. This is what --
they're |l ooking at this to bid on other

services for other distribution conpanies in
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New Engl and. And we're even hearing this is
going to be a simlar issue for the rest of
t he country.

Ri ght now, these prices are, | believe,
unpr ecedent ed conpared to what, you know, we
have seen over the |last five, naybe ten
years. You know, there's been sone price
rise, but it's been relatively uniform and
predictable. This, on the other hand, has
been non-uni form and not predictable. And
they are unable to -- like I can't tell you
what the price will be in Decenmber of 2022.
They're not willing -- they don't have that
information either. And they have to limt
their risks, too. And they're limting their
ri sk not just serving our |oad, but serving
ot her | oads that they may or may not bid on.
So wth respect to other |oads than Ganite
State Electric that sone of these suppliers
are serving, if they contracted three nonths
ago perhaps, is it your understandi ng that
sone of these suppliers are running at a | oss
today due to the significant increases in the

mar kets over the | ast few weeks?
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(Warshaw) | couldn't say if they were running
a loss. Most of these wll hedge and |l ock in
their costs so that if there's a change in
mar keti ng they are protected in sone fashion.
Ckay. So do you have any significant
concerns about the financial stability of any
of these suppliers?
(Warshaw) Not the ones that bid. They have
excellent ratings. They're large
corporations that serve | oad across the
country and are well known.
Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Thank

you, Conmm ssi oner Chattopadhyay.

BY COWM SSI ONER CHATTOPADHYAY:

Q

Looki ng at the graphs here, so just generally
speaki ng, for on-peak NYMEX futures, the

rates are going to go down starting perhaps

March. And can you give ne a sense of, I|ike,
what the prices were over March, April, My
this year? |I'mjust trying to get a sense of

are we going to see a simlar kind of
situation going forward relative to those

nonths. So March through let's say May
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recently, do you have a sense of what the
prices were?

A. (Warshaw) Yes. |If you |look at the lines that
are mar ked 6/ 16/ 2020 and 6/8/ 2021 --

Q Yeah. 2020 are the NMarch through --

A (Warshaw) At the tinme of this sane RFP
that's what the market was refl ecting going
forward for that 12-nonth peri od.

Q Can | get a clarification here? | probably
m sunderstood this. | thought these were the
dates at which you were | ooking at the
forwards. No.

So 6/16/ 2020, what does the blue curve
represent? Can you clarify?

A (Warshaw) That represents the forward curve
for on-peak NYMEX futures for the period
August 1st, 2020 through July 31st, 2021.

Q Ckay. | think the other question | have is
probably better off we do it in the
confidential section. So I'll stop here.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Ckay.
Thank you. Just a coupl e nore.
BY PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:

Q Can you speak to your eval uation process and
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met hodol ogy that the Conpany uses to eval uate
conpetitively solicited bids?

(Warshaw) What our usual process has been is
to cone up or develop a forecast of what we
think the pricing will be based on the
publ i shed forwards at the tinme that we
receive bids. W adjust that for a nunber of
other costs that the suppliers will include,
whi ch woul d be, you know, sone | SO costs,
sone Forward Capacity Market costs, sone
ancillary costs, sonme sort of factor to
reflect their profit and also their narket --
their risk factors. And I wll |ook at what
we' ve received as bids in the past conpared
to what was the actual data occurring at that
time and develop |like a factor adjuster. And
then | will use that and say, well, you know,
the pricing that we're getting is simlar to
the pricing that I'"'mforecasting. And in the
past, that has worked quite well. This has
not worked as well for the |arge custoner
group because of the | evel of uncertainty,
concern, volatility in the market that | keep

hearing fromall of the bidders. So it was
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really hard to go with it. As you'll see in
the past, it will be in the future. Al nost
li ke the statenents you see for financing.
Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:
Comm ssi oner Chattopadhyay, did you have a
foll ow up question?

COWM SSI ONER CHATTOPADHYAY:  Yeah.
You can wap up yours, and then I want to go
back to sonething I was assum ng m ght be
confidential. It is not based on what |'m
seeing here, so I'd like to ask that question
when you're set.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Ckay.

BY PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:

Q

So with respect to the forecasting that you
devel oped, would you say that the resulting

bi ds conformto your anal ysis of narket
prices, or do they vary either above or bel ow
by a certain margi n? Phrased anot her way,
did you get what you expected?

(Warshaw) | got what | expected for the snall
custoner group. W were surprised at what we

got for the | arge custoner group. The |arge
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customer group has different characteristics
which | would say the bidders factored in,
and as a result we got the prices that we
got .

About how many custoners do you have in the

| arge custoner group? And then | want to ask
how many of those are on a conpetitive

pr oduct .

(Tebbetts) If you want, we can answer that
when we get back. | can find that nunber.
Ckay. M feeling would be that you have a
fairly small nunber of custoners in that
customer group on the default product. |Is
that a fair assessnent?

(Tebbetts) It is not. | can give you nore
specific nunbers. But | can tell you for
certain that about 75 percent of our
custoners, our commercial industrial
custonmers, actually take energy service from
us. Only about 25 percent of the custoner
count, not the |oad but the count, take
conpetitive supply. And 91 to 92 percent of
our snall custoner group takes energy service

fromus, and the rest take conpetitive
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supply. So we actually have a significant
anount of custoners who cone to us for

servi ce.

Just so I'mclear on your distinction between
smal |l and | arge custoner groups, because

Wi thin your small custoner group you do have
smal | C& custoners; correct?

(Tebbetts) Yes.

Your G 3 rate cl ass.

Correct. And that woul d be anyt hi ng under

20 kWfor a load. And then anything over

20 kWis the G2 class. So one could
consider 20 kWto be small commercial in that
sense, but we separate it fromthe actual

| oad.

Ckay.

MR, SHEEHAN: Conmmi ssioner, if |
may interrupt for a mnute. DOE just handed
me one of our reports that may hel p get sone
detail on what we're tal king about. If |
could share it --

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: Pl ease.

MR SHEEHAN: It's the custoner

m gration report.
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(Tebbetts) Thank you. That's what | was

going to pull up, so that works.

BY PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:

Q

Is this in any of the exhibits or is it a
separ at e docunent ?
(Tebbetts) This is a filing we nmake as our
quarter annually -- I'"msorry -- quarterly
mgration report, and it's filed in Docket
DE 06-115. So it goes back a long tine. And
we file it every quarter.
Just a nonent.
(Tebbetts) Sure.

(Pause)
Ckay. Please proceed, M. Tebbetts. Thank
you.
(Tebbetts) Sure. So | apologize. Remnd ne
of your question again.
l"mcurious for Ganite State Electric, a
gener al breakdown of your custoners. So how
many custoners do you serve at |arge? How
many of those custoners are commercial and in
the snmall group as solicited? And how many
of those custoners are in the |arge group?

And then relative to that breakdown, how nany
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of your large C& custoners are on a
conpetitive product versus the default

pr oduct ?

(Tebbetts) Ckay. Al right. So we have --
just want to make sure. W have 154 G 1
custonmers. And of that, 108, ball park 108
because I'm giving you for a quarter, take
conpetitive service.

And what did you say the denmand breakpoint is
for G1 and G 2?

So G1 is greater than 200 kW W call them
the | arge commercial i1industrial custoners.
So that's 70 percent of our G 1 custoners

t ake conpetitive supply.

And that's just in ternms of custoner count?
(Tebbetts) That's custoner count, yes.

Wul d you happen to have any sense of what
that is in terns of service requirenent?
(Tebbetts) Sure. So when | ook at this,
we're tal king about 2-1/2 mllion kil owatt
hours for the G1 custoners. And 2-1/2
mllion or so are energy service in
conparison to about 25-1/2 mllion that take

conpetitive service for kilowatt hours. So a
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signi ficant anount of kilowatt hours are
serviced by conpetitive suppliers.

So about 75 percent of G 1 custoners are on

t he default product, but that is respectively
about 10 percent of the energy in that

cust oner group?

(Tebbetts) Seventy percent -- let ne say this
anot her way. So 30 percent of our G1, so
just G 1, which is our |argest, 30 percent

t ake energy service --

From t he Conpany?

(Tebbetts) -- fromthe Conpany. And if you

| ook at the total kilowatt hours, you're

| ooki ng at about 10 percent of the kil owatt
hours are on energy service as well. So the
majority of our |arge custoners over 200 kW
do take supply. It's when we get to the G2
custoners that that is not the case. And
when we | ook at that --

And t hose woul d be 20 to 200 kWP

(Tebbetts) That's correct. W' re | ooking at
about al nost 70 percent of those custoners
who are al so | arge customer group take energy

service, not conpetitive supply. And when |
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| ook at those kilowatt hours, it's actually
pretty close to split 50/50; 6.4 mllion take
energy service or supply for energy service,
5-1/2 mllion on conpetitive supply.

So, again, when we |look at this
information fromthe Conpany's standpoint, it
woul d suggest that the | arger custoners under
the G2 are |looking -- would | ook closer to
that G 1 where they would take conpetitive
supply. The snaller custoners, the smaller
| oad custoners tend to fall back on that
ener gy service.
| mean, that's interesting because you have a
signi ficant nunber of custoners on G 1 that
remai n on default despite the fact that you
have about an even -- or about | think you
said 70 percent of your G 2 custonmers --
(Tebbetts) Yes.

Ckay.

(Tebbetts) Yes.

And do you have any thoughts with respect to
how services |ike comunity aggregati on m ght
i npact that breakdown even further?

(Tebbetts) | don't have a sense of how it may
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I mpact that breakdown. | think it's going to
depend on what that aggregati on program | ooks
like. | knowit's an opt-out, so that may
inmpact it. | don't know.

Ckay. Thank you, Ms. Tebbetts.

(Tebbetts) And | should add, the infornation
| provided to you was for just |ooking at the
quarter, at one nonth. So certainly these
nunbers fluctuate throughout the year as
peopl e either sign up with their supplier or
get off their supplier. So this is just a
bal | par k.

Ckay. Thank you.

And ny final question before we
take a brief recess. W received the
exhibits last night. |Is there any way that
we night be able to receive these even a few
days in advance in the future to help with
our respective review?

MR SHEEHAN: If | may junp in,
Commi ssioner. The limting factor is the
contracts require approval within five
busi ness days of filing. So the only way to

build in nore tinme for you folks is to nove
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the hearing a few days after the filing,
whi ch gives you less tinme before the order
And this worked out by just one day. W do
provide informal copies to Staff and OCA
because that doesn't trigger that five-day
rule. So they've had the benefit of at | east
a few days' review. But | appreciate the box
you're in. So maybe next tinme we nove the
hearing a day or two and your fol ks can start
drafting orders before the hearing and finish
after.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Ckay.

Commi ssi oner Chattopadhyay, do you
have any questions before we take a break?

COWM SSI ONER CHATTOPADHYAY:  Yeah.

| think -- yes.

BY COWM SSI ONER CHAT TOPADHYAY:

Q

First off, a conceptual question. Do you
think the fact that you have two bl ocks of
three nonths contributes to the risk prem um
that the bidders tag in when quoting their
bids? O is there -- you know, would noving
to six nonths, you know, in one row woul d

hel p? 1'mjust curious.
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(War shaw) No.

Can you expl ain why?

(Warshaw) In the past, in nore nornal

ci rcunst ances, we have seen that the pricing
for the | arge custoner group, the two

di fferent bl ocks, sonetines cone in alittle
bit | ower than what we would see for the
smal | customer group for the six-nonth bl ock.
And t here has been sone suggesti on that,
well, why don't we just break up the snall
custoner group into two three-nonth bl ocks
and do it that way. W have not seen the
need to do that.

One of the things that we do |i ke about
having the two different blocks is that we
can get the visibility, alittle bit of
visibility to the nodels that the different
suppliers use to figure out what they expect
in the future. And maybe one supplier's
nodel may not be quite as aggressive as
anot her supplier's nodel, and we get pricing
that's a little different. Sometimes we get
pricing very close fromone supplier to

anot her when we stack them Sonetines we get
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pricing that's very different from one
supplier to another.

Have you seen instances where you had

sel ected two bidders, you know, separate,

di fferent bidders for the two bl ocks?

(War shaw) Yes.

Ckay.

(Warshaw) Multiple tines.

Multiple times. What |I'msort of, you know,
maybe overthinking this, but if there's a
volatility issue that the bidders perceive as
being -- that's going to be for let's say
three nonths, then | would expect themto be
nore wlling to participate if it was a

bi gger tranche, six nonths or so. But,
agai n, you are explaining that there's no
data to confirmone way or the other. You
know, you've seen things nove in different
directions. Basically that's what you're
sayi ng?

(War shaw) Yes.

Yeah. So the one question that | thought
probably woul d be the confidential question,

can you go to your Bates page -- Exhibit 2,
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Bat es Page 106. Let ne know when you're
t here.
(Warshaw) |1'mthere.
So can you explain this a little bit? Just
go over this.
(Warshaw) The intent of this exhibit, this
schedul e, is to give an understandi ng or give
a reflection of how the market is between now
and the previous two solicitations and al so
how the resulting retail prices are as a
result of the nost recent and the | ast two
solicitations. The idea is that, well, if
the market is up, you know, a hundred
percent, well, our retail prices are up a
hundred percent. So we're sort of reflecting
t he market fundanentals. That's what we're
trying to show. Does that answer your
question?
| think it does. Thank you.

COW SSI ONER CHATTOPADHYAY: [ 1

| et you proceed.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SIMPSON:  |'m al |
set. So before we take a break, if you have
anything final -- okay.
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So what we'll do is take a
10-m nute break. W' Il reconvene here at
3:05 p.m \When we cone back, we'll go into
confidential session. 1'll provide the

Conpany and Departnent of Energy an
opportunity to ask the w tnesses any
questions with respect to confidenti al
material. We'll then nove to Conm ssi oner
questions. Once we're finalized with
confidential material, we'll invite nenbers
of the public to step back into the room W
w Il then proceed to any redirect from both

t he Conpany and Departnent of Energy, or |
guess just the Conpany for the w tnesses, and
then we'll nove to closing for both the
Conpany and t he Departnent of Energy.

Any matters to raise wth respect
to the procedure noving forward before we go
off the record?

[ No verbal response]

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Ckay.
W will cone back at 3:05 in confidenti al
session. Of the record.

(Brief recess taken at 2:48 p.m)
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(Pages 64 through 80 of the transcri pt
are cont ai ned under separate cover
desi gnated as "Confidential and

Proprietary.")

* * * % %
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* x % * * pPUBLIC SESSION * * * * *
(Resunes at 3:35 p.m)

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  We're
going to go back on the record publicly and
exit the confidential session.

Thank you, M. Robi das.

So is there any redirect for your
W t nesses, Attorney Sheehan?

MR SHEEHAN: Looki ng t hrough ny
notes. G ve nme one second, please.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: Take
your tine.

( Pause)

MR SHEEHAN: | don't think so. |
t hi nk we' ve covered everything. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Thank
you. | would nowinvite you to present any
cl osing argunments that you m ght have on
behal f the Conpany. O let me back up. |I'm
sorry.

Wt hout objection, we'll strike
|.D. on Exhibits 1, 2 and 3 and admt them as
full exhibits.

So Attorney Sheehan, if you have
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anyt hing for closing, please proceed.

MR. SHEEHAN:. Sure. Thank you. A
few quasi -adm ni strative itemns.

The report that Ms. Tebbetts was
reading from as she nentioned, is filed in
Docket 06-115, which is still available in
t he docket book. [It's in that bucket of
ol der dockets. And you can see the quarterly
reports we've been filing for 20 years now.
So for the Conmi ssion's reference, you can
find that informati on there. And that was
one of Granite State's early default service
proceedi ngs where it clearly set up sone of
t hese processes.

Second, on the topic Conm ssioner
Chat t opadhyay rai sed about deferring sone of
t hese costs to a future period, you know,

t hat cones up, obviously, when there's big
price junps, whatever it is. This

Comm ssion's practice has generally been not
to do that for the obvious reasons that

t hi ngs coul d be worse next year and then you
conmpound the problem And so obviously that

woul d be a policy change by the Conmm ssion if
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we were to go down that road. Understandabl e
questions to ask and think through.

And nore broadly, some of the
questions fromthe Bench tal ked about shoul d
Wwe re-exam ne processes. You know, this
default service process has evol ved over tine
since the restructuring. And ny
understanding is sone of that was done in
nore generic investigatory dockets, where you
get M. Warshaw and his peers from ot her
conpanies to sort of weigh in. And | think
that would be a wise thing to think about.
You have to worry about trying to fix a
probl emthat may be just here, and you don't
want to -- but by the sanme token, the issues
we di scussed in the confidential session
coul d happen for other reasons other than the
war in Ukraine. So it mght be worth sone
t hought of what Plan B and C could be down
t he road.

So with that, we are asking the
Commi ssion to approve the energy service
rates contained in the testinony and

schedul es. The evidence is that, although
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unprecedentedly high, these prices refl ect
t he market, which is what the bottomline is,
what the job of this process is, is to nake
sure custoners are paying nmarket prices for
their service. And we appreciate the
Conmm ssion's questions and ask that you
approve those rates. Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Thank
you.

"1l recognize Attorney Wesner on
behal f of the Departnent of Energy.

MR. WESNER  Thank you,
Conmmi ssi oner.

As an initial point, | want to
t hank the Conpany for making tine to have a
techni cal session with us yesterday
afternoon. That was nost hel pful in view of
the extrenely conpressed tine frane between
subm ssion of the conplete filing yesterday
and a hearing on the nerits this afternoon.
And in that vein, | think we would encourage
t he Comm ssion to allow a bit nore breathing
room between the filing date and the hearing

date. That would be helpful | think to all
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concerned in this process, including the
Commi ssion itself. Just a few days woul d
make a positive difference.

Wth respect to the Conpany's
filing, we've reviewed Liberty's filing and
determned that it appropriately solicited
bi ds, eval uated the bids received, and
sel ected the w nning suppliers consistent
with the settlenment agreenment in prior
Commi ssion orders. As a result, we believe
the resulting rates are consistent with the
conpetitive market, which is the prinmary goal
of the electric restructuring statute. The
dramatic price increases we see here refl ect
the current volatility in the market and the
hi gh forward natural gas and electric prices
headi ng i nto next w nter.

In view of the potential custoner
bill inmpacts, we're encouraged that the
Conpany has commtted to engage in neani ngf ul
outreach and conmuni cations to prepare its
custoners for the rate increase and to
descri be potential strategies that m ght

mtigate and hel p custoners manage the
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I mpacts of the increase.

We al so believe that the Conpany's
proposed reconciliations are reasonabl e and
appropri ate under the circunstances.

Wth respect to the RPS conpliance
matters that we discussed earlier, in
particular the Cass IlIl REC purchases for
2020, we'll work with the Conpany to further
review the RPS conpliance actions it's taken
and the potential future rate inpacts of
t hose actions, with a particular focus on the
annual RPS conpliance report to be filed by
July 1st. In our view, it's an unsettled
question, however, whether Liberty should be
permtted to recover costs related to the
2020 d ass Il REC purchases that were made
in prices in excess of the applicable ACP if
those RECs ultimately cannot be used for
conpliance due to the statutory restrictions
on the use of banked RECs.

And with respect to changes in the
potenti al default service procurenent
process, | think I would echo the comments

that were just made by Attorney Sheehan, that
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t hat woul d probably be best addressed in a
generic investigation docket that would
involve all three utilities. | think part of
the concern is there may be limted options
and uni ntended consequences to any
alternative that m ght be proposed. W can
certainly learn fromwhat other utilities do
in other states, but we don't want to repeat
m st akes or stunmble into a process that nmay
not be better and coul d have even nore
negati ve i npacts.

So in conclusion, we recommend the
Conmi ssi on approve the petition and the
resulting energy service rates for electric
service to be provided by the Conpany during
t he six-nmonth period begi nni ng August 1st.
Thank you.

PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON:  Thank
you, Attorney Wesner.

On behal f of the Conmm ssion, we'd
just like to thank the Departnent of Energy
for your work, convening technica
di scussions, working with the parti es,

t horough revi ew as always. So thank you very
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much. Thank you for being here today. And
t hank you to the Conpany. Thank you for the
candor of the wi tnesses today in the
di scussi on we had.
I s there anything el se?
[ No verbal response]
PRESI DI NG OFFI CER SI MPSON: Ckay.
Thank you, everyone. W'Il| take the matter
under advi senent and i ssue an order. W're
adj our ned.
Thank you, M. Robidas, as well.
(Hearing concluded at 3:39 p.m)
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